# Rocklands Parish Council (RPC) Minutes of Parish Council Meeting (Virtual meeting - held using Google Duo) 7.00pm on Monday 9 November 2020

**Present:** David Howie Chair

Nickie Southgate Vice Chair

Tim Ford

Richard Harrison Sarah Martin

Kim Austin Clerk

Also present: 1 member of the public joined the group meeting.

The meeting opened at 19:00

# 1. To consider accepting apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Cllr. Ed Connolly who was not able to join the meeting and from Cllr. Shirley Colenutt who was not well. Jennie Bartlett also sent her apologies. All apologies were accepted.

2. To record declarations of interest from members in any items on the agenda

There were no declarations of interest.

3. To approve the minutes of the last council meeting on Monday 18 September 2020

The minutes had been circulated to all councillors prior to the meeting. All councillors approved the minutes and agreed they would be signed by the Chair, Cllr. David Howie after the meeting.

4. To discuss any matters arising from the minutes (18 September 2020) not on the agenda.

There were no matters arising from the minutes.

5. To adjourn the meeting for public participation

The meeting was adjourned at 19:10. There were no comments from the members of the public present.

6. Update from our Norfolk County Councillor, Ed Connolly

Cllr. Connolly sends a comprehensive report by email on a weekly basis.

7. Update from our Breckland District Councillor, Sarah Suggitt

No report received.

- 8. To receive village reports
  - 8.1 Village Shop and Post Office (Dave Seaton DS). No report.
  - 8.2 Village Hall (Sarah Good SG) The Clerk read out a report from SG. The gates have been fitted and will soon be painted. The car park surface has been improved, although puddles still appear during rainy conditions. Following a Health & Safety Covid-19 Risk Assessment carried out by Charles McIlwhan, the Village Hall was reopened on the week commencing 12 October on a limited basis to a few hirers. We hope to continue this again after this current lockdown has ended. Next virtual committee meeting will be on Wednesday 25 November at 7:30pm. SG had also sent a letter that the Village Hall committee had sent to Cllr. Harrison in October regarding the ditch in front of the village hall. This was discussed under item 16 Flooding.
  - 8.3 Little Rocky's Parent and Toddler Group (Sharon Brown). No report.
  - 8.4 Rocklands Primary School (David Jones DJ)

Councillor Southgate read out the report received from DJ.

After the first lockdown all children have returned to Rocklands School and are progressing well. They have adapted calmly and well to the special measures in place to protect everyone from the virus and all seems to be running smoothly and efficiently. During the second

Cianad	Data	
Signed	 Date	

lockdown school will continue to run as 'normal' (the new normal, for now) with measures already in place and working.

New school project. Cllr. Howie reiterated that the likelihood of a new school is very low as Norfolk County Council/Andrew Proctor are not supportive. Cllr. Howie had written to local parishes about a new school project and many had sent letters of support. He had also received a reply from the Duke and Duchess of Cambridge who were supportive but could not become involved on a personal basis. DJ has not given up his dream of a new school. Cllr. Howie was concerned as to what may be built on the ear-marked land if a school was not built there. Bryan Swaddling said he would rather a school be built than housing.

#### 8.5 Rocklands Playing Fields (Sarah Good).

The Clerk read out a report received from SG. The Cricket Club, Youth Football and Adult Football had been training and using limited facilities in the pavilion since the first lockdown ended. Each user group has drafted their own risk assessment and followed the strict guidance of their sport's governing body. We too have our Playing Field Health & Safety Covid Risk Assessment and have provided the clubs with limited access to the toilets in the pavilion during training. There is a one-way system in place, although the changing rooms and bar area have been off limits. To keep the bar sales going, as this is one of our only sources of income from the public, we have been serving customers outside. Following a virtual Management Committee Meeting last week we discussed plans to scrape and resurface the car park. We hope that this can be done during the November lockdown, whilst our user groups are unable to meet for training. Our children's playground will remain OPEN for the foreseeable future. Our AGM is booked for Thursday 14 January 2021.

# 8.6 Rockland St. Peter Church (RSP) (John Brown JB).

Cllr. Southgate read out a report from JB. We had a wonderful last service before lock down on 1 November. The Wymondham Choristers came to sing for the service. It was a beautiful sound. Yesterday 8 November we had a Remembrance Day Service at the Memorial Flowerbed at three o'clock in the afternoon.

JB also mentioned that, for the last few years there has been a problem with takeaway food containers and wrapping being discarded in certain front gardens in Chapel Street. This is an unnecessary practice. Could it please stop. Cllr. Southgate suggested a notice be put in the Rocklander rather than asking Neighbourhood Watch to deal with.

# 8.7 Rockland All Saints' Church (RAS) (Cath Jones CJ)

Cllr. Southgate read out the report from CJ. Since the last Parish Council meeting, there has been just the one service at All Saints, which was well attended by people from all over the benefice. A few choir members were able to sing a couple of favourite hymns from socially distanced positions in the chancel and the congregation had to be satisfied by singing along in their heads, which was frustrating for many! We were looking forward to the first communion service since March, but with the second lockdown coming into force on 5 November, this will now not take place on Sunday 15th as planned, since all places of worship are to be closed until December 2nd at least. Remembrance Day services held outside are allowed so, as I write, Rev Christina is still hoping to conduct a very short ceremony next to the memorial on the green on Wayland Rd on Sunday 8th November. Julie and I have agreed, with heavy hearts, not to try to hold a Christingle Service at All Saints this year as we felt, after much soul-searching, that it would be impossible to comply with regulations yet still have a magical experience for so many little ones and their families. Next year, we hope to resume normality with our 'specials', Candlemas service, the Pets Service and Christingle. Fingers crossed! On the domestic front, John and Dave have continued to keep the grass cut in the churchyard, the fire extinguisher has been replaced and the cobwebs removed from the interior! The cracks in the tower are still there but we have not been able to get them checked closely by structural engineer because of Covid restrictions, but we hope they are no worse! Christmas services are also on hold, but even if they are allowed, they will definitely not be as usual, unfortunately. There are lots of 'backstage' discussions going on about the future of all the churches in the area - as I have heard so frequently in the last months, these are unprecedented times. But whatever

Cianad	Data	
Signed	 Date	

happens, the PCC at All Saints sends all parishioners our very best wishes for a happy and peaceful Christmas, regardless!

# 8.8 White Hart Public House (Dave Thomas DT)

The Clerk read out an update from DT. Due to the latest set of COVID lock down rules in England as from close of business Wednesday 4 November we have been instructed to close. Furthermore, the Government has decreed this time that we aren't able to offer takeaway beers or wines from our premises whereas other (off) licensed premises which double up as stores offering essential supplies will be allowed to sell alcohol! We will look to continue to supply takeaway only fish and chips on a Friday on a pre booked basis only. This of course is dependent upon us still being able to secure reasonably priced, local produce. We may extend our food takeaway service to include other products in the future but at the time of writing this we are unable to confirm what food supplies will be available to us. We wish all our friends, patrons, customers past and present, all the very best for the future and look forward to seeing everyone on the other side of this bout of lockdown.

#### 8.9 To update on Chapel Green Meadow (Carolyn Emblen CE)

No report received from CE. Cllr. Howie confirmed that that funding is still there and Ed Stocker will still be regenerating the pond, probably in the spring.

## 9.0 To report on financial matters

## 9.1 Annual donations to churches and other village organisations

A summary of donations paid in previous years had been circulated to all councillors prior to the meeting. It was decided to award the same amounts as last year:

All Saints PCC	Churchyard	£ 85.00
St Peters PCC	Churchyard	£ 85.00
Rockland Playing Field	Playground	£120.00
Rocklands Village Hall	Hall Maintenance	£120.00
Central Norfolk Methodist Circuit	Churchyard	£ 70.00
TOTAL		£480.00

It was appreciated that church funds had been affected by the pandemic. Both the Playing Fields and Village Hall had received grant money of £10,000 each. The councillors asked if the churches were exempt from such grants? The Parish Council wanted to better understand the ins and outs of church finances and how they stand financially, for the future.

Cheques to be signed after the virtual meeting. Annual donations will be an agenda item for March 2021 where the process and beneficiaries will be reviewed.

## 9.2 Financial position

	Bank account	balances as at Monday 9 November 2020		
	Barclays Com	munity Account	£	6720.45
	Barclays Save	er (Reserve) Account	£	336.77
	·	TOTAL as per bank	£	7057.22
	Summary			
	RPC Rockland	s Parish Council	£	6427.40
	RNP Rockland	ls Neighbourhood Plan (RG)	£	200.60
	Rocklands Pla	y Park (KR)	£	50.00
	Norfolk Comr	nunity Fund grant for VE DAY events	£	379.22 *
	* (See report	below from Shena Scholes)		
		TOTAL as per bank	£	7057.22
9.3	Money in sind	ce last meeting (18 September 2020)		
	24/9/2020	HMRC Vat reclaim	£	2362.36
	1/10/2020	Breckland Council Precept 2/2 payments	£	3100.00
		TOTAL IN	£	5462.36

Signed		Date	
--------	--	------	--

## 9.4 Money out since last meeting (18 September 2020)

#### 9.4.1 Standing Orders/Direct Debits

1/10/2020	Clerk's wages (SO)	£	273.87
16/10/2020	Eon-Electricity (DD)	£	34.46
2/11/2020	Clerk's wages (SO)	£	273.87
	TOTAL OU	IT £	582.20
Cheques out	(to sign)		
CHQ 706	K&M Lighting - streetlight maint. (Nov 2020)	£	15.30
CHQ 707	TSO Host - Domain/hosting to 2022 Reimb T Sch	olesf	56 99

CHQ 706	K&M Lighting - streetlight maint. (Nov 2020)	£	15.30
CHQ 707	TSO Host - Domain/hosting to 2022.Reimb. I Schole	s£	56.99
CHQ 708	All Saints PCC - Annual donation	£	85.00
CHQ 709	St. Peters PCC - Annual donation	£	85.00
CHQ 710	Rockland Playing Fields – Annual donation	£	120.00
CHQ 711	Rocklands Village Hall - Annual donation	£	120.00
CHQ 712	Central Norfolk Methodist - Annual donation	£	70.00
	TOTAL OUT	£	552.29

# Precept 2021-2022

9.4.2

The Clerk has received the precept forms that need to be completed and returned by 31 January 2021. The precept will be an agenda item for the January 2021 meeting.

#### Chapel Green Licence

A letter was posted to Pat Robinson in January 2020 for Chapel Green Licence payment of  $\pounds 1$  as a fee for allowing her 'House Plaque' to be sited on Chapel Green. No acknowledgement or money has been received; therefore, the licence has not been renewed.

#### VE day Grant report (SS)

The Clerk read out the report from Shena. The VE Day grant was £500. £120.78 went towards the cost of making the VE Day Memorial flower bed which has been used during the pandemic at various points, for people to visit, to remember those lost in the various conflicts. Yesterday there was a short socially distanced ceremony of Remembrance. The remaining grant money was due to be used to help in providing the village with a wonderful VE Day celebration. Unfortunately, due to the pandemic this was not possible so we have to decide, how best, to spend the remaining monies. Of the £379.22 left, ~£50 will be used by Karen Roseberry to buy more plants. I have been waiting for price to lay a row of slabs around the base of the bed to ensure that it is a more level and to better protect it from rot over the years. I have been promised that this will be this week. I think this may take the majority of the remaining monies. Once Remembrance Day has passed, we will ensure that the flag and the bunting are removed leaving the posts with the 2 poppies at the back.

The PC thought  $\sim £380$  for the slabs sounded a lot of money but agreed majority could be labour costs. Cllr. Southgate said she may have slabs that she can donate to the cause. The PC would like to be consulted and agree the spend.

Post meeting note: Max Fitton Landscaping services have quoted £475. The cost is high due to using readymade cement as there is no water or electricity at the site.

#### 10. To consider planning applications

# 10.1 Planning outcomes since last meeting

 $3PL/2020/0735/HOU\ Garrod/Willow\ cottage/Cart\ lodge\ garage/storage\ (198)\ WITHDRAWN\ to\ (205)\ 3PL/2020/0880/VAR\ Dunning/Barn\ at\ Magna\ Farm/Variation\ of\ conditions/layout\ (200)\ PERMISSION\ delication\ for\ condition\ for\ c$ 

#### 10.2 Applications pending outcome

3PL/2020/0944/HOU Router/Rose Cottage/2 storey side extn. (201) See variation (203 below)

#### 10.3 New applications since last meeting (18 Sept 2020)

3PL/2020/1120/F Warnes/Magpie Lane/New detached 1.5 storey dwelling (202)

Signed	 Date	

The Parish Council had discussed this application at length and draft comments had been circulated prior to the meeting. It was a unanimous decision that Rocklands Parish Council would object very strongly to this application. The following very compelling reasons were put forward.

- 1. The site lies well outside the settlement boundary of the village. Policy HOU 04 states that 'Appropriate development will be allowed immediately adjacent to the settlement boundary, subject to being supported by other policies within the Development Plan- .' The indicated plot clearly does not comply with this condition.
- 2. The indicated plot was already rejected by Breckland as a suitable site for development, (when it was submitted as part of a larger area), during the recent Local Plan consultation period (see Breckland Local Plan Part 21 Emerging Site Options, December 2015 Pages 156 and 188), on the basis that it constitutes a 'rural location'.
- 3. When a previous application was approved for new stables on the site (Ref: 3PL/2017/1278/F refers), there was an LPA-imposed condition stating that the 'The stables hereby permitted shall be used solely for private equestrian purposes only and shall not be used in connection with any trade or business, including hiring of horses, livery stables, riding school, breeding or training purposes. Reason for condition: In the interests of the amenities of the area/local residents and highway safety in accordance with policy DC1 of the Adopted Core Strategy and Development Control Policies Development Plan Document 2009'. Para 2.4 of the included Design and Access Statement for this application says that 'The residential plot is to be associated and linked to the business' but the applicant is not permitted to use the premises for business purposes so this constitutes another very strong reason for refusal.
- 4. As per Policy HOU 04, Rocklands has already significantly exceeded its allotted quota for development (which is for 9 new dwellings) as there are currently approvals for 15 new dwellings in place, which represents an increase of 70% above the 5% threshold.
- 5. There are inconsistencies in the detail provided relating to the disposal of surface water (to a non-existent 'main sewer') and for foul sewage, (indicated as 'Unknown').
- 6. Such a development would contravene all the principles laid down by Breckland to protect rural settlements by unacceptable encroachment onto open, rural land and would have a significant effect on the amenity of local residents in Magpie Lane.

The Parish Council will urge Breckland Council to oppose this application.

It was commented that the application was sloppy and water disposal was not accounted for. PC keen to get the 'no business' point across to Breckland. Cllr. Howie thanked Cllr. Southgate, Cllr. Harrison and Richard Golke for their hard work in this matter.

3PL/2020/0944/HOU Router/Rose Cottage, 59 The Street/2 Storey side extn. (203)

This is a re-alignment of the roofline to this extension, to be more in keeping with the original cottage. The Parish Council, had no objection to the first application and in fact, strongly supported the proposal, which Breckland stated they would not support. This latest application is strongly supported by all the neighbours (who have commented favourably on the website). In keeping with the original comments, the Parish Council will continue to strongly support this application, as it will improve the street scene (by demolishing the rather unsightly garage, and building it to the rear of the property) and will allow a young family who are committed to the village, to remain here in a  $21^{\text{st}}$  century home which is very relevant.

3PL/2020/1178/HOU Mayes/Windy Acre Bell Road/Single storey extensions (204)

The Parish Council had NO OBJECTION to this application but Cllr. Southgate wanted to speak to all neighbours before making a final decision. The Clerk would wait for Cllr. Southgate before responding to Breckland Council.

3PL/2020/1140/HOU Garrod/Willow Cottage Sandy Lane/Oak Cart Lodge (205)

The large amount of Velux windows was noted. The Parish Council agreed they had NO OBJECTION to this application which was relatively small and laid back from the road.

#### 11. To update on Broadband

Fibre to the premises should have now been live but just waiting on the paperwork. Hopefully, outlying properties will also be connected. Cllr. Martin will let everybody know when they residents can notify their Internet Service Providers.

C	D . 1 .	
Signed	Date	
JIKITEU	 Date	

Congratulations to Rocklands resident Peter Martin, Openreach engineer, for being awarded an MBE in the Queen's Birthday Honours list for services to communications. Well done Peter and thank you from Rocklands for helping to progress fibre in the village.

# 12. To update on First Time Sewerage System for Rocklands St. Peter

Cllr. Harrison had distributed this detailed report to all councillors prior to the meeting:

At the beginning of October, I had communications with the Anglian Water (AW) Pre-Development Senior Engineer - who informed me that the new sewerage scheme has now moved forward into the 'Delivery Phase'. The Delivery Phase is managed and operated by the @One Alliance – who will be designing and constructing the new sewerage scheme. The '@One Alliance' is a joint venture between AW and a number of approved contractors/suppliers. It exists to deliver the AW capital investment programmes. Our contact has now moved over to a Coordinator in the @One Alliance - who has informed me that our particular scheme is currently programmed to start in 2022, but this could be subject to change. The @One Alliance plan to do some surveys soon, which will include a letter to all eligible residents - introducing them to the scheme and detailing what surveys will need to be undertaken. On the 8 October, I produced a draft of a 'First Time Sewerage' information sheet for those in the St Peter area who could be eligible for the scheme. It was sent to the @One Alliance Coordinator for comments on accuracy. I still await a full response but have already been told that - due to Ofwat cuts in funding - some of the financial incentives for householders, pertaining in March this year, may be withdrawn, so might cost them a bit more. When the @One Alliance have agreed a final draft of the information sheet, we will have it printed and distributed to all residents north of Attleborough Road.

Cllr. Howie agreed we should keep pushing along to see if we can move Rocklands to the front of the queue. Cllr Harrison reported the ground water level being higher than his septic tank system outfall and needs emptying every 3 to 4 weeks costing £120 per time. Good to connect to the mains as soon as possible.

#### 13. To update on the Rocklands Neighbourhood Plan (RNP) and Local Plan (LP)

Work on the Neighbourhood Plan has been curtailed by the Covid situation. RG will contact Susan Heinrich, Breckland's Neighbourhood Planning Co-Ordinator for an update on the current situation. Need to respond to MPs comments re planning.

#### 14. To update on SID (Flashing Speed sign) (Cllr. Harrison RH)

Cllr. Harrison had distributed this detailed report to all councillors prior to the meeting: Since our last meeting, a further two deployments of the SID have been completed as follows: The Street, vehicles from Village Hall towards B1077 Crossroads

> Deployed: 15:00 hrs 04 September 2020 Finished: 12:00 hrs 04 October 2020

The analysis results show: 10,757 vehicles detected Average 360 vehicles/day

Morning peak time - 08:00 to 09:00 Afternoon peak time - 15:00 to 16:00

8,016 vehicles (74.5%) within **30 mph** speed limit

2,741 vehicles (25.5%) exceeding speed limit

- of which 671 vehicles (6.2%) over 35 mph - and likely open to a fine\*

Top speed: 65 mph - 30/09/2020 @ 14:05 hrs

Attleborough	Road	vehicles	from	Great	<b>Fllingham</b>

Deployed: 12:00 hrs 04 October 2020 Finished: 12:00 hrs 02 November 2020

The analysis results show: 44,434 vehicles detected Average 1,532 vehicles/day

Signed	Dato
JIKITEU	 Date

Morning peak time - 08:00 to 09:00

Afternoon peak time - 15:15 to 16:15

34,808 vehicles (78.3%) within 40 mph speed limit

9,626 vehicles (21.7%) exceeding speed limit

of which 3,487 vehicles (7.9%) over 46 mph - and likely open to a fine\*

Top speed: **75 mph** - 10/10/2020 @ 06:30 hrs
On 4 September, Tim Ford kindly helped to fit a bracket at the other <u>new</u> monitoring position towards the North end of The Street. This position is opposite the single bungalow and faces towards the Village Hall. It monitors the traffic coming from the village towards the B1077 crossroads (a 30 mph limit). Again, I had to spend quite some time cutting back roadside vegetation with my cordless hedge

trimmer - so that the radar had a clear sightline of approaching vehicles, and that vehicles could see the speed sign clearly from a distance (the Council have not been maintaining the verges).

So, for the first deployment at this position:

vehicle movements averaged 360 per day vehicles speeding numbered 2,741 (25.5%) vehicles open to enforcement action numbered 671 (6.2%)

As we found with the other new position at the North part of The Street, this is again a significant number of speeding vehicles - albeit ca. 5% less than the other new location. However, one vehicle was recorded at 65 mph in this 30 mph zone!

Since the last deployment at the Great Ellingham-facing position:

vehicle movements <u>increased</u> by 133 per day (that's an increase of 9.5%) vehicles speeding <u>decreased</u> from 24.9% to 21.7% vehicles open to enforcement action decreased from 9.1% to 7.9%

So, an increase in vehicle movements, with a small reduction in speeding numbers. However, 22% is still very high and unacceptable, and 8% open to enforcement action is still significantly high.

\* The SID is limited to grouping vehicle speeds into 5mph blocks. However, for a 40mph speed limit, enforcement action is normally applied at 46mph and above – so a very small proportion of vehicles above 45mph could arguably be travelling at less than 46mph (e.g. 45.5mph). The SID also has a specified accuracy of  $\pm$  0.5mph. Enforcement action is not always a fine – depending on circumstances, drivers may be offered a speed awareness course.

Thank you to Richard for all his work with SID. Thanks to Tim for his help with moving signs. (See data tables at end of minutes)

If we could get the 40mph sign moved to give motorists more warning - this might help but know the authorities will say they do not have the budget to move signs.

There has been an increase in the volume of **tractors and trailers** travelling along the Attleborough Road in Rocklands. The cereal crops have finished so think it is the maize being harvested for the Biogas plant. Biogas Plant planning conditions restrict vehicle movements to particular daytime hours. Cllr. Harrison will circulate these planning documents. Currently hearing these vehicles after 11.30pm. They are noisy and shake the foundations. This is a breach of the conditions and should be reported to Breckland. Note: Biogas plant has a new owner.

Post meeting note: The biogas plant above was given permission to expand greatly in August 2020, and the GE chairman confirms, as a Parish Council they were unfortunately not consulted. There is another biogas plant between Hingham and Watton.

# 15. To update on Highways

**Green Lane**. Highways said Green Lane is a bridleway. Upkeep is the responsibility of residents and playing fields. Ed Connolly says it should be fit for pedestrians and is chasing an inspection by Highways. The Clerk to update John Rose.

Cllr. Harrison will email highways about a footpath sign that has rotted and needs replacing.

#### 16. To update on Flooding (RH)

Cllr. Harrison had distributed this report to all councillors before the meeting:

Signed	 Date	

On 15 October, Nathan Harris of the NCC Flood Risk Team dropped by with a copy of the report on the drainage 'survey' carried out by their contractors in The Street and Low Lane areas in May of this year. It consists of a list of positions surveyed – accompanied by a number of DVD video discs with corresponding camera footage. Unfortunately, it does not tell us much that we did not know already, and the video footage is often compromised by the limitations of the equipment used. At the same time, I provided Nathan with a DVD containing photographs and video footage of the flooding in the area of 38 The Street at the end of August. I have been in communications with Sarah Good and Dave Jones regarding the maintenance of the ditch outside the Village Hall. I have had a response, but other matters have prevented me from taking it further at the moment. I will consider taking further advice from the NCC Flood Risk Team. Cllr. Harrison is looking for available grants to put abatement systems on either side of the street.

As mentioned in Item 8.2 (Village Hall report) - the following letter from the Village Hall committee had been sent to Cllr. Harrison after concerns were expressed about the ditches at the Hall.

The ditch was inspected at the height of recent flooding. The outlet pipe sits well above any mud, is protected by a grille and was clear of any blockage. Constrictions further downstream were impeding the flow of water and causing the ditch to fill.

Now that most of The Street has been piped, this section of ditch is probably all that remains of the original deep ditches which took water away from the road and properties during heavy rain. Piping this section could have a detrimental effect. Flooding experts who visited the village suggested that, allowing the ditch to overflow onto the grassed area in front of the hall could reduce flooding further down The Street. (Cllr. Harrison had no record of this in his notes) This would be another aspect of designating appropriate areas to flood during heavy rain, thus protecting properties by stemming the rate of flow through the village. In general, some weeds at the bottom of a ditch tend to regulate the flow of water, though we do not wish for the ditch to become unsightly.

There is a maintenance schedule in place whereby the agreement set up with the person employed regularly to cut the grass at the front of the hall also includes ditch maintenance. The person concerned has received a reminder. Meanwhile, if someone else stepped in to tidy up the ditch, it potentially compromises this agreement.

The village owes a very great deal to Cyril Ruffles for his input into maintaining our village hall ever since it first opened. There has been a lengthy period of adjustment whereby committee members have gradually undertaken various essential tasks, as Cyril has reluctantly been obliged to step back. Our policy is to put <u>sustainable</u> rather than 'ad hoc' arrangements in place whilst mindful of our budgetary constraints.

Much needed fencing has been put in place (we now await installation of gates by the contractor) and the car park has been repaired and extended. Inside, there have been useful alterations and redecorating. Meeting Covid requirements has proved complex, expensive, and labour-intensive, but we hope to reopen, on a limited basis, week beginning 12th October.

Cllr. Martin will meet with Cyril as soon as the crop has been harvested.

#### 17. To discuss any correspondence.

Flyposting. It was reported to the PC that posters advertising a health club/gym had appeared on lamp posts in the village. Cllr. Southgate wrote to the advertisers saying they should remove the illegally displayed posters but had no reply. It was agreed the posters should be taken down.

**Streetlight**. A report had been received of a streetlight that was shining into a bedroom window. The Parish Council agreed that they would see if anything could be done about this. The Clerk would contact the streetlight maintenance company.

#### 18. AOB

Streetlight 9013 reported as out. The Clerk will contact the streetlight maintenance company. Building work. Concerns were raised about building work going on in the garden of April Cottage, Chapel Street, as to whether the work was compliant with planning. There were also concerns about the footpath being used by vehicles connected with the building. The Parish Council would investigate.

Date .....

19.	Date of next	Meeting -	Monday 11	January	2020, 7pm	(May be a virtua	l meeting)
	The meeting	closed at 2	20.55				

Signed .....

Start		04/09/2020
Finish		04/10/2020
Total Vehicles		10,757
Average Vehicles/day		360
Morning Peak		08:00-09:00
Afternoon Peak		15:00-16:00
Max Speed (date)		65 (30/09/20, 14:05)
0-30 mph		8,016
%	#DIV/0!	74.52
30+ mph		2,741
%	#DIV/01	25.48
35+ mph		671
96	#DIV/01	6.24
35-40		562
%	#DIV/OI	5.22
40-45	N	100
%	#DIV/0!	0.93
45-50		7
96	#DIV/01	0.07
50-55		1
96	#DIV/0!	0.01
55-60		C
96	#DIV/01	0.00
60-65		1
%	#DIV/0I	0.01
65-70		0
%	#DIV/0!	0.00

04/10/2020	03/07/2020	03/04/2020	06/01/2020	12/09/2019
02/11/2020	04/08/2020	04/05/2020	05/02/2020	11/10/2019
44,434	44,605	24,131	49,654	41,427
1,532	1,399	773	1,653	1,483
08:00 09:00	07:30 08:30	07:00 08:00	07:15:08:15	08:00:09:00
15:15-16:15	1645-17:45	16:30 17:30	15:30 15:30	17:00-18:00
75 (10/10/20 - 06:30)	75 (10/07/20 - 19:10)	75 (10/04/20 - 17:45)	80 (17/01/2020 - 21:45)	75 (07/10/2019 - 07:05)
34,808	33,509	14,900	38,267	32,681
78.34	75.12	61.75	77.07	78.89
9,626	11,0%	9,231	11,387	8,746
21.66	24.88	38.25	22.93	2111
3,487	4,062	4,357	3,932	3,088
7.85	9.11	18.06	7.92	7.45
2,385	2,749	2,667	2,802	2,105
5.37	6.16	11.05	5.64	5.08
790	943	1,156	865	705
1.78	2.11	4.79	1.74	170
237	281	389	186	210
0.53	0.63	1.61	0.37	051
57	70	121	€	59
0.13	0.16	0.50	0.13	0.14
14	15	20	13	8
0.08	0.04	0.08	0.08	0.02
4	3	4	1	1
0.01	0.01	0.02	0.00	000
	0	0	2	0
	02/11/2020 44,434 1,532 08:00 09:00 15:15 16:15 75 (10/10/20 · 06:30) 34,808 78.34 9,625 21.66 3,487 7.85 2,385 5.37 790 1.78 237 0.53 57 0.13 14 0.08	02/11/2020 04/08/2020 44,434 44,605 1,532 1,399 08:00 09:00 07:30 08:30 13:15 16:15 16:45 17:45 75 (10/10/20 · 06:30) 75 (10/07/20 · 19:10) 34,808 33,509 78:34 75:12 9,625 11,096 21:66 24:88 3,487 4,062 7.85 9:11 2,385 2,749 5.37 6:16 790 943 1.78 2:11 237 281 0.53 0.63 57 70 0.13 0.16 14 16 0.08 0.04	02/11/2020 04/08/2020 04/05/2020 44,434 44,605 24,131 1,532 1,399 773 08:00 09:00 07:30 08:30 07:00 08:00 13:15 16:15 16:45 17:45 15:30 17:30 75 (10/10/20 · 06:30) 75 (10/07/20 · 19:10) 75 (10/04/20 · 17:45) 34,808 33,509 14,900 78.34 75.12 61.75 9,625 11,096 9,231 21:66 24.88 38:25 3,487 4,062 4357 7.85 9.11 28:06 2,385 2,749 2,667 5.37 6.16 11.05 790 943 1,156 1.78 2.11 4.79 237 281 389 0.53 0.63 1.61 57 70 121 0.13 0.16 0.50 14 15 20 0.08 0.04 0.08 4 3 4	02/11/2020 04/08/2020 04/05/2020 05/02/2020 44,434 44,605 24,131 48,654 1,532 1,399 773 1,653 08:00 09:00 07:30 08:30 07:00 08:00 07:35 08:15 13:15 16:15 16:45 17:45 16:30 17:30 15:30 16:30 75 (10/10/20 - 06:30) 75 (10/07/20 - 19:10) 75 (10/04/20 - 17:45) 80 (17/01/2020 - 21:45) 34,808 33,509 14,900 38,267 78.34 75.12 61.75 77.07 9,625 11,096 9,231 11,387 21:66 24.88 38:25 22:93 3,487 4,062 4,357 3,932 7.85 9.11 8.06 7.92 2,385 2,749 2,667 2,802 5.37 6.16 11.05 5.64 790 948 1,156 865 1.78 2.11 4.79 1.74 237 281 389 186 0.53 0.63 1.61 0.37 57 70 121 63 0.13 0.15 0.50 0.13 14 25 20 13 0.08 0.09 0.00

|--|